
 
Teton County 

• 150 Courthouse Drive, Driggs, Idaho 83422 
 • Fax: 208-354-8778 www.tetoncountyidaho.com 

 
March 31, 2014 
 
 
RE:  Teton County Angle Frame Bleacher Bid - Addendum 1 
 
 
The following clarifications are issued for the Angle Frame Bleacher Request for Bids. 
 

1) Does this project require a bid bond?  
NO 

 
2) What is the tax rate and what is taxable? 

NOT TAXABLE 
 

3) Seating capacity is noted as approximately 1000.  With 112.5’ length and 
removing 3-4’6” wide aisles will result in maximum seating capacity of 
990.  With 6’ frame spacing and expanding length to 114’ it will be possible to 
attain 1000 capacity and not have odd bay spacing for frames.  Is space available 
for 114’ length?  
YES. OVERALL LENGTH NOT TO EXCEED 116 FEET. 
 

4) Specifications not aluminum angle frame understructure.  Is hot dipped 
galvanized steel acceptable as long as all code required loading requirements are 
met in design of structure?  
YES 
 

5) Specifications note single 2x10 and 2x12 for treads.  We typically provide 2 – 
2x11 which will cover same tread width.  Is this acceptable?  
YES 
 

6) Specification notes 1x8 riser for all rows.  A 1x6.5 riser which sets on the treads 
of row in front and under the aisle extension at the aisles furnishing a closed rise 
and tread at this location.  A 1x8 will not fit with some decking arrangements.  Is 
standard decking providing the 2-2x11 mill finish footboards and 1x6.5 anodized 
finish riser acceptable?  
THIS ARANGEMENT MAY BE ACCEPTABLE. SUBMIT DRAWINGS WITH 
YOUR BID AND IT WILL BE CONSIDERED. 
 

7) Engineer stamped drawings and calculations are noted as being required.  The 
calculations are going to note that the bleachers need to be anchored to resist 
uplift from wind.  If these bleachers are to be built outside a concrete slab on 
grade or other method of anchoring the bleachers will be required.  Will there be a 
concrete slab under the bleacher foot print to allow use of concrete anchors or will 
we need to add for ground anchors to secure to grade?   
BLEACHERS WILL BE SET ON CONCRETE. 
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8) If ground anchors are required, does manufacturer also need to provide 2x6 mud 

sills on base of frames?  
BLEACHERS WILL BE SET ON CONCRETE. 
 

9) If the bleachers are to be erected indoors, anchoring of the base may not be 
required but we need to know if mud sills are desired beneath the frames if they 
are to be installed on ground. 
BLEACHERS WILL BE SET ON CONCRETE 
 

10) Does space on site permit for  increased width of crosswalk up to 74" wide?  
SPACE IS PERMITED ON SITE 
 

11) There is no mention of wheel chair access to the bleachers.  Is a ramp required 
and are we to install wheel chair locations within the seating area?   
PLEASE SEE BID ALTERNATE 5 ON THE RIVISED BID FORM.  
 

12) Note:  Each wheel chair space in the bleacher will delete 4 seats in the 
bleacher.  If 10 spaces are provided there will be a net loss in seating capacity of 
30+/-.  
ACKNOWLEDGED 
 

13) In reviewing the specifications, I noticed there is no mention of wheel chair 
accessibility in the bleacher?  Was this an oversight or is wheel chair seating not 
required? 
PLEASE SEE BID ALTERNATE 5 ON THE RIVISED BID FORM.  
  

14) Also, your base bid specification only requires two stair exits, but IBC code 
requires a minimum of three exits for a seating capacity greater than 750 seats. 
REFER TO IBC 2012 AND ICC 2012 
 

15) What is the time frame for delivery?  
DELIVERED TO SITE BY JUNE 2, 2014 
 

16) Email sealed bids to:  
jshaum@co.teton.id.us 
 
 
 

Thank you, 
Harley Wilcox 
Fair Board Chairman 



Teton County Idaho is requesting Bids for new metal bleachers for 
the County Fairgrounds, installation is not included. Bids will be 
accepted at the Teton County Clerk’s office until 5 pm April 2, 2014. 
The Sealed Bids will be opened publicly at 8:00 am April 3, 2014 at 
the Teton County Courthouse.

Electronic copies of the bleacher specifications and Bid Response 
Form will be available March 20, 2014 from Fair Board President 
Harley Wilcox: harleyw@silverstar.com or 208-709-4555. They will 
also be posted on the county website at www.tetoncountyidaho.gov

In determining the lowest responsive bid, the County will consider 
all acceptable bids on a basis consistent with the specifications. 
The County will also consider whether the bidder is a responsible 
bidder. The successful bidder must meet the requirements of State 
statutes.

Before a contract is awarded for purchase of the bleachers, the 
County will conduct such investigation as may be necessary to de-
termine the performance record and ability of the apparent low bid-
der to deliver the bleachers specified within the desired time frame. 
No Bid may be withdrawn after the scheduled bid opening.

The County reserves the right to reject any or all 
Bids received, to waive informalities, to post-
pone the award of the contract for a period not 
to exceed thirty days, and to accept the lowest 
responsive and responsible Bid which is in the 
best interest of Teton County.
Published in the Teton Valley News March 20 & 27, 2014.
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Teton County Idaho Public Works 
Request for Bids 

ANGLE FRAME BLEACHER BID 
 

1) Purpose of Request: 
The County of Teton in the State of Idaho (“County”) is soliciting responses to this request for bids (RFB) for 
angle frame bleachers to accommodate approximately 1000 people as per specifications. 
 

2) Time Schedule: 
The County will follow the following general timetable: 
a. Issue written RFB March 21, 2014. 
b. Companies may submit written questions concerning this RFB to the Contact Person for receipt no later than 

12:00 PM local time on March 31, 2014.  Questions received after the stated deadline will not be answered.  
c. Any addenda to the RFB will be posted to the County website (www.tetoncountyidaho.gov) and available at 

the Teton County Courthouse by 3:00 PM local time on April 1, 2014. No oral statement of any person shall 
modify or otherwise change or affect the terms or conditions stated in the RFB, and changes to the RFB, if 
any, shall be made in writing only and issued in the form of an Addendum to the RFB and highlighted in the 
RFB.  

d. Deadline for Submittal of Responses to RFB (opening); 
i) The deadline for submitting the responses is April 2, 2014 at 5:00 pm local time. 
ii) The RFB submittal opening will at the Teton County Courthouse on April 3, 2014 at 8:00 am. 

 
3) Instructions to Proposers: 

a. All responses shall be sent to: 
Teton County Fair Board 
CO Clerks Office 
150 Courthouse Drive 
Driggs, ID 83422 
208-354-0245 

b. An authorized representative of the firm must complete and sign at least one (1) page of its bid.  
 

4) Terms and Conditions: 
a. The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, and to waiver minor irregularities in any RFB 

response. 
b. The County reserves the right to request clarification of the information submitted, and to request additional 

information from any respondent. 
c. Any RFB response may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for opening of the RFB responses. 

 
5) Scope of Services: 

Bleachers shall conform in all respects to the requirements in the attached specification. 
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Bidder Response Form 

 
Bidder’s Corporation/Partnership Name:         
 
Bidder’s Business Address:           

 
Bidder’s Phone Number:     Bidder’s Fax:      
 
Bidder’s Email:             
 
 
By (Signature):            
                                 
Name (typed or printed):           
                            
SUBMITTED ON:             
 
Base Bid:  Angle Frame Bleacher  
Item No. Description Bid Price 

1 Aluminum bleachers-Capacity 1,000  

 
Bid Alternates 

Item No. Description Bid Price 

1 12-inch Risers with 26 to 30-inch Tread  
2 1-inch x 10-inch Riser at all Rows  
3 66-inch Crosswalks  
4 2 Additional Stairs  
5 Provide ADA seating per code  

 
Bid prices listed shall include all applicable taxes and fees.  
 
Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of 
comparison of Bids, and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities, 
determined as provided in the final contract documents. 

 
 
Attach additional material as required to meet submittal requirements. 

 



 
TETON COUNTY IDAHO FAIR BOARD 

BID DEADLINE APRIL 2, 2014 – 5PM 

 
ANGLE FRAME BLEACHER SPECIFICATIONS (ELEVATED) – REVISED 3/21/14 
 
SCOPE 

Design of the bleacher shall conform in all respects to the requirements as set forth in these 
specifications.  The description of the bleacher is as follows: 
 

 Number of rows: 15  
 Overall length:  112’-6” approx. 
 Net seating for approx. 1,000 
 30” or more elevated front crosswalk 
 Aluminum angle frame structure 
 2x10 anodized seats 
 8” rise/24” tread (with option for 12" rise/26"to30" tread) 
 2x10 and (1) 2x12 foot plank per row 
 1x8 riser at all rows (with option for 1x10 riser for 12' rise) 
 (3)4’-6” aisles with mid-aisle grab rail 
 Galvanized chain link guardrail system 
 54” front crosswalk depth (with option for 66" crosswalk) 
 (2) stairs off the end of crosswalk (with option for (2) additional stairs off the middle of crosswalk) 
 Delivered to Teton County Fair Grounds,1413 N Highway 33 Driggs Idaho 83422 
 Engineer sealed submittal package 

 
UNDERSTRUCTURE 

The understructure of the bleacher shall consist of a series of welded aluminum angle frames spaced 
at intervals of no more than 6'-0" and joined by means of aluminum sway braces. Design of the 
bleacher shall conform in all respect to the ICC 300/IBC 2012 Edition for bleachers and grandstands.   
 
DESIGN 

The bleacher shall be designed to support, in addition to its own weight, a uniformly distributed live 
load of not less than 100 pounds per square foot of gross horizontal projection of the bleacher.  All 
seat and foot plank members shall be designed to support not less than 120 pounds per lineal foot.  
The bleacher shall be designed to resist, with or without live load, a horizontal wind load appropriate 
for local conditions.   
 
AISLES 

There shall be three 4’-6” wide vertical aisles located within the bleacher leading to the front 
walkway. Aisle extension plank shall be provided to close the horizontal opening in the aisle.  Aisle 
shall be provided with a handrail, in accordance with requirements of ICC 300/IBC 2012. 
 
WARRANTY 

All aluminum bleachers shall carry, after proper erection, and under normal use for this type of 
structure, a One (1) year warranty against all defects in materials and workmanship.  Acts of 
vandalism or abuse shall render the conditions of this warranty null and void. 
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